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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
October 14, 2013

Honorable Mayor and Members of the
Board of Alderpersons

City of Long Beach

Long Beach, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Long Beach, Mississippi, as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s management. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi, as of September 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 14, 2013, on our
consideration of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison schedule that governmental
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial
statements is not affected by this missing information.

9490 Three Rivers Road j Gulfport, MS 39503 i (228) 863-0411 | Fax (228) 863-1165 | E-Mail: info@avicpa.com | www.avlcpa.com
304 N. Vardaman Street | P.O. Box 749 j' Wiggins, MS 39577 i (601) 928-4416 | Fax (601) 928-4417 | E-Mail: info@avlcpa.com | www.avicpa.com
Members: American Institute of CPA's, Mississippi Society of CPA's, The AICPA Alliance for CPA Firms-
Partnering for CPA Practice Success, National Association of Certified Valuation Analysts



Honorable Mayor and Members of the
Board of Alderpersons

City of Long Beach

October 14, 2013

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City
of Long Beach, Mississippi’s financial statements as a whole. The introductory section and accompanying financial
information listed as pages 1, and 38 through 44 in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are not a required part of the financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards on pages 49
through 50 is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the financial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide
any assurance on it.

L. b Tor fos ooy & Ao
ALEXANDE AN LOON, SL.OAN, LEVENS & FAVRE, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants
Gulfport, Mississippi
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF LONG BEACH

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 525,185 $ 20,824 $ 546,009
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 3,825,526 2,677,159 6,502,685
Receivables, net 622,398 592,354 1,214,752
Due from other governments 1,817,883 2,705,187 4,523,070
Inventories - 958 958
Other receivables 162 - 162
Prepaid expenses 132,813 - 132,813
Restricted assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2,031,390 - 2,031,390

Pooled cash and cash equivalents 102,960 344,141 447,101

Certificates of deposit 55,274 277,717 332,991
Other assets, net 20,679 - 20,679
Capital assets

Land, improvements, and construction in progress 12,445,827 1,956,316 14,402,143

Other capital assets, net of depreciation 32,732,293 40,943,787 73,676,080

Total capital assets 45,178,120 42,900,103 88,078,223
Total assets 54,312,390 49,518,443 103,830,833
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 596,438 415,474 1,011,912
Interest payable 8,057 5,365 13,422
Other accrued liabilities 26,027 - 26,027
Due to other governmental agencies - 182 182
Deferred revenues 224,298 103,640 327,938
Compensated absences, current 76,519 3,617 80,136
Capital leases payable, current 91,873 - 91,873
Bonds and notes payable, current 233,000 338,556 571,556
Payable from restricted assets:

Customer deposits - 344,141 344,141
Compensated absences, noncurrent 240,280 - 240,280
Capital leases payable, noncurrent 89,895 - 89,895
Bonds and notes payable, noncurrent 1,110,000 1,689,195 2,799,195

2,696,387 2,900,170 5,596,557
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 43,332,354 40,804,876 84,137,230
Restricted for:
Debt service 806,555 - 806,555
Other purposes 1,385,999 277,717 1,663,716
Unrestricted 6,091,095 5,535,680 11,626,775

Total net assets

$ 51,616,003

$ 46,618,273

$ 98,234,276

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF LONG BEACH

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 523,860 $ 1,325 $ 525,185
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 3,825,526 - 3,825,526
Receivables, net 619,468 2,930 622,398
Due from other governments 1,817,883 - 1,817,883
Other receivables 157 5 162
Prepaid expenses 132,813 - 132,813
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,114,975 916,415 2,031,390
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 102,960 - 102,960
Certificates of deposit - 55,274 55,274
Total assets $ 8,137,642 $ 975,949 $ 9,113,591
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 488,340 $ - $ 488,340
Accrued liabilities 26,027 - 26,027
Deferred revenue 2,223,413 - 2,223,413
Compensated absences 76,519 - 76,519
Total liabilities 2,814,299 - 2,814,299
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Prepaid expenses 132,813 - 132,813
Restricted for:
Unemployment compensation fund 37,606 - 37,606
Hurricane Katrina repairs 1,009,058 - 1,009,058
Committed 171,271 168,064 339,335
Assigned - 806,555 806,555
Unassigned 3,972,595 1,330 3,973,925
Total fund balances 5,323,343 975,949 6,299,292
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 8,137,642 $ 975,949 $ 9,113,591

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
6



CITY OF LONG BEACH

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Total fund balance, governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources
and therefore are not reported in this fund financial statement, but are reported
in the governmental activities of the Statement of Net Assets.

Certain other assets (such as accounts receivable) are not available to pay
current period expenditures and therefore are not reported in this fund financial
statement, but are reported in the governmental activities of the Statement of
Net Assets. Such amounts are reported as deferred revenue.

Some liabilities (such as bonds and notes payable, capital leases payable,
retainage payable, and long-term compensated absences) are not due and
payable in the current period and are not included in the fund financial
statement, but are included in the governmental activities of the Statement of
Net Assets.

Net assets of governmental activities

$ 6,299,292

45,178,120

2,019,793

(1,881,202)
_$ 51,616,003

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

)



CITY OF LONG BEACH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES
Property taxes

Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Fees and fines
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Investment earnings
Donations
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government

Public safety

Public works

Culture and recreation
Debt Service:

Principal

Interest and other charges

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Insurance proceeds

Sale of assets

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
$ 4,765,795 h 248,125 $ 5,013,920
1,292,439 - 1,292,439
577,480 - 577,480
773,903 - 773,903
69,995 - 69,995
3,939,369 - 3,939,369
384,481 - 384,481
11,924 1,117 13,041
43,500 - 43,500
106,133 - 106,133
11,965,019 249,242 12,214,261
3,757,272 - 3,757,272
5,509,172 - 5,509,172
990,434 - 990,434
1,004,401 - 1,004,401
- 307,689 307,689
- 94,563 94,563
11,261,279 402,252 11,663,531
703,740 (153,010) 550,730
1:054 = 1,054
18,792 - 18,792
477,467 706,618 1,184,085
(1,725,515) - (1,725,515)
(1,228,202) 706,618 (521,584)
(524,462) 553,608 29,146
5,847,805 422341 6,270,146
$ 5,323,343 $ 975,949 $ 6,299,292

8




CITY OF LONG BEACH

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report outlays for capital assets as expenditures because such
outlays use current financial resources. In contrast, the Statement of Activities
reports only a portion of the outlay as expense. The outlay is allocated over the
assets' estimated useful lives as depreciation expense for the period.

This is the amount by which capital outlays ($2,240,639) exceeded depreciation
($1,189,354) in the current period.

Governmental funds do not present donated capital assets as contributions. In
contrast, such contributions are reported in the Statement of Activities.

Governmental funds report the entire net sales price (proceeds) from sale of an asset
as revenue because it provides current financial resources. In contrast, the Statement
of Activities reports only the gain or loss on the sale of the assets. Thus, the change
in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the net book value of the
asset sold.

Governmental funds do not present revenues that are not available to pay current
obligations. In contrast, such revenues are reported in the Statement of Activities
when earned. In the current year, revenues were recognized at the fund level that
were deferred in prior years.

Governmental funds report bond proceeds as current financial resources. In contrast,
the Statement of Activities treats such issuance of debt as a liability. Governmental
funds report repayment of bond principal as an expenditure. In contrast, the
Statement of Activities treats such repayments as a reduction in long-term liabilities.
This is the amount of repayments. There were no new proceeds.

Governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs when debt is first issued,
whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities.

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and these are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Accrued interest not reflected on Governmental funds

Compensated absences not reflected on Governmental funds

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Enterprise Funds

Water and Port and
Sewer Harbor Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,471 $ 353 $ 20,824
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 816,166 1,860,993 2,677,159
Accounts receivable, net 586,158 6,196 592,354
Due from other governments 1,742,610 962,577 2,705,187
Inventories - 958 958
Total current assets 3,165,405 2,831,077 5,996,482
Non-current assets:
Restricted assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 344,141 - 344,141
Certificates of deposit 277,717 - 277,717
Capital assets:
Land and construction in progress 137,425 1,818,891 1,956,316
Other capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation 37,452,443 3,491,344 40,943,787
Total non-current assets 38,211,726 5,310,235 43,521,961
Total assets 41,377,131 8,141,312 49,518,443
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 299,456 116,018 415,474
Accrued interest payable 5,365 - 5,365
Payable to other governments 35 147 182
Deferred revenue 103,640 - 103,640
Compensated absences 108 3,509 3,617
Bonds and notes payable 338,556 - 338,556
Payable from restricted assets:
Customer deposits 344,141 - 344,141
Total current liabilities 1,091,301 119,674 1,210,975
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds and notes payable 1,689,195 - 1,689,195
Total liabilities 2,780,496 119,674 2,900,170
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 35,562,117 5,242,759 40,804,876
Restricted for other purposes 277,717 - 271,717
Unrestricted 2,756,801 2,778,879 5,535,680
Total net assets $ 38,596,635 $ 8,021,638 $ 46,618,273

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
10



CITY OF LONG BEACH

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Enterprise Funds

Water and Port and
Sewer Harbor Total

REVENUES
Charges for services $ 5,785,986 $ 309,321 $ 6,095,307
Miscellaneous 35,004 540 35,544

Total operating revenues 5,820,990 309,861 6,130,851
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personal services 80,722 245,870 326,592
Materials and supplies 1,538,406 19,158 1,557,564
Contractual services 2,764,840 46,176 2,811,016
Other services and charges 491,159 56,650 547,809
Depreciation and amortization 1,196,708 115,253 1,311,961

Total operating expenses 6,071,835 483,107 6,554,942

Operating loss (250,845) (173,246) (424,091)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Loss on asset disposal (1,230) - (1,230)
Interest and investment revenue 523 - 523
Operating grants and contributions 162,377 8,951 171,328
Interest expense (81,185) - (81,185)

Total non-operating revenue (expenses) 80,485 8,951 89,436
LOSS BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

AND TRANSFERS (170,360) (164,295) (334,655)
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Capital contributions 218,619 1,401,891 1,620,510
Transfers in 482,555 560,068 1,042,623
Transfers out (376,965) (124,228) (501,193)

Total capital contributions and transfers 324,209 1,837,731 2,161,940
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 153,849 1,673,436 1,827,285
TOTAL NET ASSETS - BEGINNING 38,442,786 6,348,202 44,790,988
TOTAL NET ASSETS - ENDING $38,596,635 $ 8,021,638 $46,618,273

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF LONG BEACH
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Enterprise Funds

Water and Port and
Sewer Harbor Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers $ 5,851,132 $ 311,583 $ 6,162,715
Payments to suppliers (5,024,333) (101,957) (5,126,290)
Payments to employees (80,614) (245,414) (326,028)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 746,185 (35,788) 710,397
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from operating grants and contributions 162,377 8,951 171,328
Operating subsidies and transfers from other funds 104,960 433,700 538,660
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities 267,337 442,651 709,988
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases and construction of capital assets (701,145) (1,411,354) (2,112,499)
Proceeds from capital grants 662,802 1,205,382 1,868,184
Proceeds from debt 203,880 - 203,880
Principal paid on capital debt (352,206) - (352,206)
Interest paid on capital debt (79,368) - (79,368)
Net cash used in capital
and related financing activities (266,037) (205,972) (472,009)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Restricted customer deposits 13,815 - 13,815
Purchase of certificates of deposit (281) - (281)
Interest received 301 - 301
Net cash provided by investing activities 13,835 - 13,835
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 761,320 200,891 962,211
Balances-beginning of the year 419,458 1,660,455 2,079,913
Balances-end of the year $ 1,180,778 $ 1,861,346 $ 3,042,124
NONCASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Infrastructure donated by developers $ 409,640 $ - $ 409,640
RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Unrestricted:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 20,471 $ 353 $ 20,824
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 816,166 1,860,993 2,677,159
Restricted:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents 344,141 - 344,141
$ 1,180,778 $ 1,861,346 $ 3,042,124

12



CITY OF LONG BEACH
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Enterprise Funds
Water and Port and
Sewer Harbor Total
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS
TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss $ (250,845) $ (173,246) $ (424,091)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,196,708 115,253 1,311,961
Bad debt expense 75,584 4,243 79,827
Increase in current assets
Accounts receivable (63,631) (2,521) (66,152)
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities
Accounts payable (211,631) 20,027 (191,604)
Compensated absences - 456 456
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 746,185 $ (35,788) $ 710,397

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
13
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CITY OF LONG BEACH
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FIDUCIARY FUND
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Tax Collector
Clearing Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 157
Property tax receivables 76,767
Total assets $ 76,924
LIABILITIES
Other liabilities $ 157
Due to other governments 76,767
Total liabilities $ 76,924

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
14
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
L. Introduction

The City of Long Beach, Mississippi (City), was incorporated on August 10, 1905, under the laws of the State of
Mississippi. The City operates under a Mayor-Board form of government. The following services are provided by the
City: Public Safety (Police, Fire and Protection/Inspection), Street Maintenance, Garbage Collection, Water and Sewer,
Port and Harbor, Social and Recreational, Public Improvements, Planning and Zoning, and General Administrative
Services.

The accounting and reporting framework and the more significant accounting principles and practices are discussed in
subsequent sections of this Note. The remainder of the notes is organized to provide explanations, including required
disclosures, of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2012.

IL. Financial Reporting Entity

The City’s basic financial statements include the accounts of all City operations. The criteria for including organizations
as component units of the City consist of oversight responsibility, special financing relationships and scope of public
services. Oversight responsibility is determined by the extent of financial interdependency, control over the selection of
the governing authority and management, ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal
matters. Based on these criteria, the City has no component units.

III. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements
Governmeni-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant
extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset
by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment; (2) operating grants and contributions which finance
annual operating activities including restricted investment income; and (3) capital grants and contributions which fund
the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of capital assets and include fees to developers. Taxes and other items not
properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though
the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

IV. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

(A) Basis of Accounting

The City complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applicable
to governmental entities, and as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). GASB is the
accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. Proprietary funds apply

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions,
unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements, in which case, GASB prevails.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
IV. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)
(A) Basis of Accounting (Continued)

The government-wide financial statements report using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting generally including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity (between or within funds).
Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting although
internal activity is not eliminated in these statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property tax revenues are recognized in
the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements report using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. The City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within
60 days of the end of the current fiscal period, or within 90 days if received from FEMA. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Major revenue sources susceptible to accrual include: property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, intergovernmental
revenues, and investment income. In general, other revenues are recognized when cash is received by the City.

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenues and expenses related to the
primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenues for proprietary funds are charges to customers
for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and include
administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenues and expenses are classified as non-operating
in the financial statements.

(B) Fund Types and Major Funds

Governmental Funds

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

General Fund — The general fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Proprietary Funds

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
Water and Sewer Fund — The utility fund accounts for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of
providing water, sewer, gas, and garbage services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered

primarily through user charges.

Port and Harbor Fund — The port and harbor fund accounts for the activities and operations of the City-operated
harbor.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

IV. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)
(B) Fund Types and Major Funds (Continued)

Other Fund Types

The City also reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds — The special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources
(other than special assessments, expendable trust, or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds — The debt service funds are used to account for the servicing of long-term general obligation debt
of the governmental funds.

Capital Projects Fund — The capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital improvements and facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds).
However, capital projects related to the recovery from Hurricane Katrina are accounted for in the general fund.

Fiduciary Fund — The tax collector fund is used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent
for other governmental units.

(C) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

V. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity
(A) Deposits and Investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are primarily considered to be cash on hand and amounts held in demand deposits.
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, short-term investments held in proprietary funds with a maturity date within
three months of the date acquired by the City, if any, are considered to be cash equivalents.

The City maintains and controls a major cash pool in which the majority of the City’s funds share. Each fund’s portion
of the pool is displayed on their respective balance sheet as “pooled cash and cash equivalents,” some of which are
restricted assets. In addition, non-pooled cash is separately held and reflected in their respective funds as “cash and cash
equivalents,” some of which are restricted assets.

State statutes authorize the City to invest in (1) direct obligations of the United States government, the payment of which
the full faith and credit of the United States government is pledged, (2) certificates of deposit when insured or secured by
acceptable collateral and (3) obligations of the State of Mississippi, or any county, municipality or school district of the
State of Mississippi which have been approved by a reputable bond attorney or have been validated by the decree of the
chancery court. Investments are recorded at cost, which approximates fair value.

See Note 2 for information regarding collateral pledged against the City’s deposits.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
V. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)
(B) Receivables and Payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” or “advances to/from other funds.” All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental
activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds (if any), as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable
available financial resources.

All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles. An allowance has been provided in the Water and
Sewer fund for estimated uncollectible utility charges and in the Port and Harbor fund for uncollectible dockage fees.
The allowance amounts are estimated based on the aging of the receivables, historical collection experience and other
relevant circumstances. As of September 30, 2012, the allowances for uncollectible water and sewer charges and for
port and harbor dockage fees are $638,342 and $94,485, respectively.

(C) Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond September 30, 2012, are recorded as prepaid
items.

(D) Restricted Assets

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature or normal understanding of the
availability of the asset. Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws.
When both restricted and nonrestricted assets are available for use, the policy is to use restricted assets first.

(E) Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and
similar items), net of depreciation, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. The City generally capitalizes assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of
donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are
not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during

the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed. No interest cost was capitalized during the current fiscal year.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
V. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)
(E) Capital Assets (Continued)

Property, plant, and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Asset Useful Life
Buildings 50 years
Building improvements 20 years
Public domain infrastructure 20— 50 years
Utility system infrastructure 10— 50 years
Machinery and equipment 3-15years
Vehicles Syears

(F) Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type
activities, and proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond issuance costs and bond premiums and discounts are
capitalized and amortized over the terms of the respective bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

The governmental fund financial statements recognize the proceeds of debt and premiums as other financing sources of
the current period. Issuance costs are reported as expenditures.

(G) Compensated Absences

The City’s policy requires employees to take vacation time earned in the calendar year following the calendar year in
which the leave was earned. All unused vacation time is forfeited. Employees may accumulate up to ninety days of sick
leave. It is the City’s policy that all unused sick leave is forfeited upon termination, retirement, lay-off or cause.
Retiring and terminating employees are paid for all unused vacation and unused comp time. All accumulated vacation
and comp time pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. In the
fund financial statements, a liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.

The compensated absences liability was computed using the specific identification method whereby the actual number of
vacation hours is multiplied by the employee’s hourly rate at September 30, 2012. The resulting liability is then
increased to include social security and retirement contributions that the City is required to pay upon liquidation of the
liability.

(H) Fund Balance

The City has adopted GASB Statement No. 54, which redefined how fund balances of the governmental funds are
presented in the financial statements. Fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable — Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable form or because they are
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the state or federal laws, or externaily
imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.

Committed — Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action by ordinance or
resolution. This includes the budget reserve account.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(H) Fund Balance (continued)

Assigned — Amounts that are designated by the City for a specific purpose but are not spendable until a budget
ordinance is passed by the City. Intent can be expressed by the City Council or by an official or body to which the
City Council delegates the authority.

Unassigned — All amounts not included in other spendable classifications

The details of the fund balances are included in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. As discussed previously in this
note, Restricted Funds are used first as appropriate. Assigned Funds are reduced to the extent that expenditure authority
has been budgeted by the Board or the Assignment has been changed by the Mayor. Decreases to fund balance first
reduce Unassigned Fund Balance; in the event that Unassigned Fund Balance becomes zero, then Assigned and
Committed Fund Balances are used in that order.

(I) Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt,
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used
for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are
limitations imposed on their use either through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.

NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
(A) Deposits
The City deposits funds in financial institutions selected by the City’s Board of Alderpersons in accordance with

Mississippi statutes. Mississippi statutes allow municipalities to select depositories on the basis of competitive bid. A
summary of cash (including restricted cash) as of September 30, 2012, follows:

Pooled
Cash on Cash Cash
Hand Deposits Deposits Total
Governmental Activities
General Fund $ 210 $ 1,638,625 $ 3,928,486 $ 5,567,321
Other Governmental Funds - 917,740 - 917,740
Total governmental activities 210 2,556,365 3,928,486 6,485,061
Business-Type Activities
Enterprise Funds:
Water and Sewer Fund 225 20,246 1,160,307 1,180,778
Port and Harbor Fund 353 - 1,860,993 1,861,346
Total business-type activities 578 20,246 3,021,300 3,042,124
Fiduciary Fund - 157 - 157
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 788 $ 2,576,768 $ 6,949,786 $ 9,527,342
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPP1
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
(A) Deposits (Continued)

The City maintained the following restricted assets as of September 30, 2012:

Governmental Activities

Cash and cash equivalents
Drug seizure funds $ 68,311
Debt service funds 803,625
Fire rebate funds 102,960
Restricted donations - Mittal Steel USA 1,009,058
Unemployment funds 37,606
Capital asset 112,790

Certificates of deposit - capital asset 55,274
Total restricted assets - governmental activities 2,189,624

Business-Type Activities
Cash and cash equivalents

Utility customer deposits 344,141
Certificates of deposit - escrow funds from developers 277,717
Total restricted assets - business-type activities 621,858
Total restricted assets $ 2,811,482

From January 2006 through September 30, 2012, Mittal Steel USA has donated a total $1,750,000 in financial support to
assist the City in its efforts to restore and rebuild the City’s public buildings and infrastructure damaged or destroyed by
Hurricane Katrina. The funds are held in an escrow account and are disbursed as costs are incurred.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial credit risk is defined as the risk that, in the event of the failure of a financial institution, the City will not be
able to recover its deposits or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City does not have a
deposit policy for custodial credit risk. However, the Mississippi State Treasurer manages that risk on behalf of the City.
Depositories must be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized in an amount equal
to 105% of the uninsured deposit. The collateral is held in the name of the State Treasurer under a program established
by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-105-5 of the Mississippi Code. Under this program,
the City’s funds are protected through a collateral pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions
holding deposits of public funds must pledge securities as collateral against those deposits. In the event of failure of a
financial institution, securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public
deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation. By using this multiple financial institution
collateral pool, none of the City’s deposits at September 30, 2012, were exposed to custodial credit risk.

At September 30, 2012, deposits (including restricted deposits) are as follows:

Bank Carrying
Balance Amount

Cash and cash equivalents $ 10,188,501 $ 9,527,342
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
(B) Investments

At September 30, 2012, the City held the following certificates of deposit with maturity dates of longer than three
months:

Balance Balance
October 1, September 30,
2011 Purchases Maturities 2012
Gowernmental Activities:
Peoples Bank, 0.35% interest,
matures September 22, 2013 $ 55,103 $ 171 $ - $ 55,274
Peoples Bank, 0.60% interest,
matures September 19, 2012 112,115 675 (112,790) -
Total governmental activities 167,218 846 (112,790) 55,274
Business-type Activities:
The First Bank, 0.65% interest,
matures July 27,2013 277,437 280 - 277,717
Total business-type activities 277437 280 - 277,717
Total $ 444,655 $ 1,126 $ (12,7900 $§ 332,991

Interest Rate Risk — Investments

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The
City does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to
fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. However, since the City only invests in certificates of deposit
with maturities of one year or less from qualified depositories, the City does not believe it is exposed to interest rate risk.

Credit Risk — Investments

Credit risk is generally the risk that issuers of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment.
The City has no investment policy that would limit its investment choices due to credit risk. However, Mississippi State
Code limits investment of surplus funds to certificates of deposit with qualified depositories and in bonds and direct
obligations of the United States of America; or the State of Mississippi; or any county, municipality or school district of
the State of Mississippi which have been approved by a reputable bond attorney or have been validated by the decree of
the chancery court. The City invests its surplus funds in certificates of deposit and does not believe that it is exposed to
credit risk.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 3: RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2012 consist of the following:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Other Water and Port and
General Nonmajor Sewer Harbor
Fund Funds Fund Fund Total
Property taxes $ 66,49 $ 2930 $ - $ - $ 69,420
Payments in lieu of taxes (PILOT) 17,482 - - - 17,482
Franchise taxes 157,636 - - - 157,636
Accounts, gross - B 1,224,500 100,681 1,325,181
Court fines, gross 5,819,764 - - - 5,819,764
Total receivables, gross 6,061,372 2,930 1,224,500 100,681 7,389,483
Less allowance for
doubtful receivables (5,441,904) - (638,342) (94,485) (6,174,731)
Total receivables, net $ 619,468 $ 2930 $ 586,158 $ 6,19 $ 1,214,752
Due from fiduciary fund $ 157 $ - $ - $ - $ 157
Interest receivable - 5 - - 5
Total other receivables $ 157 $ 5 $ - $ - $ 162

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to be
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection
with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. Deferred revenue at September 30, 2012, consists primarily
of grant awards received but not earned.

Property Taxes

Harrison County bills and collects the real, personal, and auto ad valorem taxes for the City. Taxes on real and personal
property are levied by the Board at the first regular meeting in September for the ensuing fiscal year, which begins on
October 1. Restrictions associated with property tax levies vary with the statutory authority. State law limits the amount
of increase in certain property taxes. Generally, this restriction provides that these tax levies shall produce no more than
110% of the amount that resulted from the assessments of the previous year plus new construction.

Real property taxes become a lien on January 1 and personal property taxes become a lien on March 1 of the current
calendar year. Taxes on both real and personal property, however, are due on or before February 1 of the next
succeeding year. Taxes on motor vehicles and mobile homes become a lien and are due in the month that coincides with
the month of original purchase. All taxes are remitted monthly to the City. In addition, Harrison County also remits to
the City a pro-rata share of road and bridge taxes collected by the County. Accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America require property taxes to be recognized at the levy date if measurable and available. All
property taxes are recognized as revenue when received. Real property taxes are recognized as revenue when received
because most delinquent real property taxes are collected by selling real property for taxes, together with all fees,
penalties and damages accruing until date of sale, before the close of the fiscal year. The remaining amount of real
property not sold for taxes at the tax sale is considered immaterial; therefore, no end of year delinquent taxes receivable
is recorded. The amount of delinquent personal property taxes unpaid at year-end is also considered immaterial.

The rates are expressed in terms of mills (i.e., ten mills equal one cent). The combined tax rate to finance general
governmental services, including the payment of principal and interest on long-term debt and other purposes for the year
ended September 30, 2012, was 48.98 mills or $48.98 per $1,000 of assessed valuation. A summary of the assessed
valuations and tax levies of the City for the year ended September 30, 2012, has been provided on the next page.
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NOTE 3: RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Property Taxes (continued)

State law requires the municipality to exercise its taxing authority for the benefit of other governing authorities, which
are not a part of the reporting entity. As provided, the municipality must levy specified ad valorem taxes as directed by
the other governing authority and turn all proceeds over to it. Accordingly, taxes for the Long Beach School District are
also billed and collected by the County and remitted to the City for disbursement to the School District.

Ad valorem taxes collected and settled in accordance with this legal requirement are not recognized as revenues and
expenditures of the municipality. The tax levies noted below with respect to the school funds were made in accordance

with this legal requirement.

The assessed valuations of the City and the School District for the year ended September 30, 2012, are as follows:

CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Real property $ 85,168,879 Real property $ 92,259,627
Personal property 3,851,890 Personal property 7,768,815
Public utilities 3,253,016 Public utilities 3,920,979
Automobiles 15,923,374 Automobiles 17,357,104
Mobile homes 7,862 Mobile homes 44,180
Total - City $ 108,205,021 Total - School District $ 121,350,705

The tax levies for the City and the School District for the years ended September 30, 2012, 2011, and 2010, are as
follows:

2012 2011 2010

CITY
General fund 46.48 46.43 44.63
City bond and interest fund 2.50 2.50 4.35
Total city administered funds 48.98 48.98 48.98
SCHOOL DISTRICT
Shortfall notes 1.75 1.75 1.75
School building program 3.00 3.00 3.00
District maintenance funds 55.00 55.00 55.00
Total school administered funds 59.75 59.75 59.75

Total taxlevy 108.73 108.73 108.73
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NOTE 4: DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

Due from other governments at September 30, 2012, consists of the following:

Gowvernmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Other Water and Port and
General Nonmajor Sewer Harbor
Fund Funds Fund Fund Total
Due from other
governments
Harrison County Utility
Authority $ - $ - $ 37,797 $ - $ 37,797
Sales tax 217,988 - - - 217,988
Grants 1,599,895 - 1,704,813 962,577 4,267,285
Total due from
other governments $ 1,817,883 $ - $ 1,742,610 $ 962,577 $ 4,523,070
Sales Taxes

The State levies a 7% sales tax on retail sales and remits 18.5% of the amount collected (within the corporate boundaries
of the City of Long Beach) back to the City monthly. Sales tax revenue was $1,292,439 for the year ended September
30, 2012 and is included in intergovernmental revenues — sales tax on the Statement of Activities. Sales taxes receivable
consists of taxes collected by the State for August and September 2012 not received by the City until October and
November 2013.
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NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2012, is as follows:

Balance Balance
Qctober 1, Disposals / September 30,
2011 Additions Transfers 2012
Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 5,703,918 $ - $ - $ 5,703,918
Construction in progress 21,510,614 1,954,363 (16,723,068) 6,741,909
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 27,214,532 1,954,363 (16,723,068) 12,445,827
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 3,738,643 - 9,746,938 13,485,581
Improvements other than buildings 476,074 - - 476,074
Machinery and equipment 2,690,488 113,382 (105,200) 2,698,670
Infrastructure 20,020,459 920,360 6,670,732 27,611,551
Vehicles 2,658,411 150,054 (90,483) 2,717,982
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 29,584,075 1,183,796 16,221,987 46,989,858
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (647,741) (221,323) 239,432 (629,632)
Improvements other than buildings (96,324) (9,105) - (105,429)
Machinery and equipment (1,084,248) (330,465) 37,280 (1,377,433)
Infrastructure (10,020,328) (414,596) - (10,434,924)
Vehicles (1,581,516) (213,865) 85,234 (1,710,147)
Total accumulated depreciation (13,430,157) (1,189,354) 361,946 (14,257,565)
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 16,153,918 (5,558) 16,583,933 32,732,293
Total governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 43,368,450 $ 1,948,805 $ (139,135) $ 45,178,120
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NOTE 5: CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)
Balance Balance
October 1, Disposals / September 30,
2011 Additions Transfers 2012
Business-Type Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 387,425 $ - $ - $ 387,425
Construction in progress 5,165,661 1,780,551 (5,377,321) 1,568,891
Total capital assets,
not being depreciated 5,553,086 1,780,551 (5,377,321) 1,956,316
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 21,202,269 409,640 - 21,611,909
Harbor structures and improvements 4,033,133 32,150 - 4,065,283
Water and sewer system 21,266,239 - 5,377,321 26,643,560
Machinery and equipment 181,091 22,262 (14,423) 188,930
Vehicles 59,323 63,495 - 122,818
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 46,742,055 527,547 5,362,898 52,632,500
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (42,357) (9,162) - (51,519)
Harbor structures and improvements (481,912) (110,725) - (592,637)
Water and sewer system (9,706,268) (1,173,472) - (10,879,740)
Machinery and equipment (111,087) (11,082) 13,193 (108,976)
Vehicles (48,321) (7,520) - (55,841)
Total accumulated depreciation (10,389,945) (1,311,961) 13,193 (11,688,713)
Total capital assets,
being depreciated, net 36,352,110 (784,414) 5,376,091 40,943,787
Total business-type activities
capital assets, net $ 41,905,196 $ 996,137 $  (1,230) $ 42,900,103
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:
Governmental Activities
General government $ 118,131
Public safety 419,281
Public works 583,354
Culture and recreation 68,588

Total governmental activities
depreciation expense

Business-Type Activities
Water and Sewer
Port and Harbor
Total business-type activities
depreciation expense
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in long-term debt during the year ended September 30, 2012, are as follows:

Balance Principal Balance
October 1, Payments/ September 30,  Due within
2011 Additions Reductions 2012 One Year
Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds $ 1,563,000 $ - $ (2200000 $ 1,343,000 $ 233,000
Capital leases 269,448 - (87,680) 181,768 91,873
Compensated absences 290,989 287,343 (261,533) 316,799 76,519

Total govemmental activities § 2,123,437 $ 287,343 $ (569213) $ 1,841,567 $ 401,392

Business-Type Activities

General obligation bonds $ 80,000 $ - $ (40,0000 $ 40,000 $ 40,000
Notes 2,096,077 203,880 (312,206) 1,987,751 298,556
Compensated absences 3,053 4472 (3,908) 3,617 3,617

Total business-type activities $ 2,179,130 $ 208,352 $ (356,114 § 2,031,368 $ 342,173
(A) Bonds Payable

At September 30, 2012, the City’s outstanding bonds payable are described as follows:

Final Balance
Date of Maturity Original September 30,
Issue Date Rates Issue 2012
Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds:
Public Improvement 1992A 12/1/1992 12/1/2012  5.0%-71% $ 592,000 $ 50,000
Public Improvement 1996 5/1/1996 5/16/2016 4.8% - 6.5% 1,700,000 500,000
Refunding Bonds 2010 7/30/2010 8/1/2022 3.5% 921,000 793,000
Total bonds - governmental activities 3,213,000 1,343,000
Business-Type Activities:
General obligation bonds:
Water and Sewer 1992B 12/1/1992 2/1/2012  5.0% - 6.25% 530,000 40,000
Total bonds payable $ 3,743,000 $ 1,383,000

General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities.
General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. The governmental
activities bonds are generally repaid from ad valorem taxes through the debt service funds. The water and sewer general
obligation bonds are repaid from resources generated by the water and sewer enterprise fund.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)
(A) Bonds Payable (Continued)
General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

General obligation bonds generally are issued as serial bonds with certain amounts of principal maturing each year. The
annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Year Ending Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Requirements
2013 $ 233,000 $ 57318 $ 40,000 $ 1,250 $ 331,568
2014 190,000 46,935 - - 236,935
2015 202,000 37,765 - - 239,765
2016 210,000 27,965 - - 237,965
2017 78,000 17,780 - - 95,780
2018-2022 430,000 46,200 - - 476,200

Total $ 1,343,000 $ 233,963 $ 40,000 $ 1,250 $ 1,618,213

(B) Notes Payable

At September 30, 2012, the City’s outstanding notes payable are described as follows:

Balance
Date Maturity  Interes Original September 30,
Issued Date Rate Amount 2012

Business-Type Activities:
State of Mississippi, State Revolving Fund Loan  5/16/1994 3/1/2014 450% $ 369228 § 54,465
State of Missisippi, Drinking Water Improvement

(Main) Revolving Fund Loan 10/24/1997 1/1/2021 4.50% 900,271 475,457
State of Mississippi, State Revolving Fund Loan  4/1/1999 1/27/2019  4.50% 807,429 400,854
State of Missisippi, Drinking Water Improvement

Revolving Fund Loan 1/5/2000 3/1/2023 3.00% 274,823 166,601
State of Mississppi, State Revolving Fund Loan  5/23/2001 1/1/2019 3.00% 520,336 302,433
State of Mississippi, Drinking Water Improvement

(SE Long Beach) Revolving Fund Loan 1/30/2007 2/1/2017 2.00% 500,000 203,385
State of Missisippi, Drinking W ater Improvement

(Well) Revolving Fund Loan 9/1/2007 1/1/2021 4.50% 358,123 191,123
State of Missisippi, Drinking Water Systems

Emergency Loan Fund 5/9/2012 2/10/2017 2.00% 203,880 193,433
Total notes payable $ 39340900 $ 1987751

Principal and interest maturities will be as follows:

Year Ending Business-Type Activities Total

September 30, Principal Interest Requirements
2013 $ 298,556 $ 67,865 $ 366,421
2014 290,162 57,757 347919
2015 280,884 47,918 328,802
2016 281,584 38,064 319,648
2017 217,899 29,281 247,180

2018-2022 618,666 41,789 660,455

Total $ 1,987,751 $ 282,674 $ 2,270,425
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

(C) Capital Leases
At September 30, 2012, the City had the following outstanding capital leases:

Balance
Original September 30,
Amount 2012
Governmental Activities:
Capital lease payable to bank, dated September 5, 2000,
secured by a fire truck, bearing an interest rate of 5.69%,
payable in annual installments of $50,351 through October 5,
2012 $ 427525 $ 52,631
Capital lease payable to bank, dated January 19, 2010, secured
by excavator, bearing an interest rate of 3.2%, payable in
annual installments of $23,726 through February 11, 2015 108,041 66,855
Capital lease payable to AT&T Capital Services, dated May 3,
2011, secured by E911CAD Equipment, bearing an interest
rate of 4.05%, payable in annual installments of $22,464
through May 3, 2016 103,913 62,282
Total capital leases $ 639,479 $ 181,768

The future minimum lease obligation and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of September 30,
2012, were as follows:

Year Ending
September 30, Total
2013 $ 983828
2014 46,190
2015 46,191
Total minimum lease payments 191,209

Less amount representing interest (©.441)

Present value of minimum payments  $ 181,768

As of September 30, 2012, the cost of the vehicles and equipment under capital leases in the governmental fund was
$639,479 and accumulated depreciation for those assets was $276,641. Depreciation expense associated with the assets
under capital leases in the governmental activities in fiscal year 2012 totaled $57,782 and is included in the statement of
activities, public safety expenses.

(D) Legal Debt Margin

The City’s legal debt limit for general obligation bonds is $16,230,753. At September 30, 2012, the City’s legal debt
margin, after reduction for outstanding general obligation notes of $1,343,000, was $14,887,753.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 7: GULF OF MEXICO OIL LEAK
On April 20, 2010, there was a massive oil leak from a deep-sea rig explosion in the Gulf of Mexico. In June 2010, the
City was awarded a grant from the BP Deepwater Horizon Response Mississippi Block Grant Program in an amount not
to exceed $2,000,000 to help the City with any cost incurred related to clean up. Through September 30, 2012, the City
has received amounts totaling $674,852.
NOTE 8: INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS
Interfund balances as of September 30, 2012, were comprised of the following;:

(A) Interfund Transfers

Transfers In
Gowvernmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Other Water and Port and
General Nonmajor Sewer Harbor Total
Fund Funds Fund Fund Transfers Out
Transfers Out
Governmental Activities:
General $ = $ 682,892 $ 482,555 $ 560,068 $ 1,725,515
Business-type Activities:
Water and Sewer 353,239 23,726 - - 376,965
Port and Harbor 124,228 - - - 124,228
Total Transfers In $ 477,467 $ 706,618 $ 482555 $ 560,068 $ 2,226,708

(B) Management Fees

The City’s water and sewer fund and port and harbor fund (proprietary fund types) pay a management fee to the general
fund to cover various costs such as administrative salaries, occupancy costs, etc. Such fees totaled $332,802 for the year
ended September 30, 2012. The fees were included in “charges for services” general government program revenue in the
Statement of Activities and in the general fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental Funds. The corresponding expenditure was included in “expenses” in the water and sewer ($300,000) and
port and harbor ($32,802) funds in the Statement of Activities and “contractual services” expenditures in the water and
sewer and port and harbor funds in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets — Proprietary
Funds.
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SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 9: RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

(A) Governmental Activities

The restricted portions are as follows:

Restricted Assets
Municipal debt service $ 695326
School debt service 111,229
Drug seizure funds 43,948
State seizure funds 24,363
Unemployment 37,606
Cash - capital assets 112,790
Certificate of deposit - capital assets 55,274
Mittal Steel USA donation 1,009,058
Fire rebate funds 102,960
Restricted net assets M
(B) Business-type Activities
The restricted portions are as follows:
Restricted Assets
Customer deposits $ 344,141
Certificate of deposit 277,717
Total restricted accounts 621,858

Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets

Customer deposits 344,141
Restricted net assets $ 277,717

NOTE 10: JOINT VENTURE
Harrison County Utility Authority

The City is a member of the Harrison County Utility Authority (Authority), which was established by an act of the
Mississippi Legislature to provide for adequate wastewater treatment and solid waste disposal services to the citizens of
Harrison County, Mississippi. The governing board is comprised of one member from each of the cities and county who
are members of the Authority. Through a fifty-year contract, the City is obligated to pay monthly, its pro-rata share of
all operating, administrative, and capital costs of the Authority. Additionally, the City is jointly and severally liable for
all of the liabilities of the Authority. The Authority is classified as a joint venture between the City and the other
members. The following is a synopsis of the Authority's financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30,
2012, a complete copy of which is on file at the administrative offices of the Authority which are located at 10271
Express Drive, Gulfport, Mississippi 39503, or may be obtained by calling (228) 868-8752.

32



CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 10: JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
Harrison County Utility Authority (Continued)

BALANCE SHEET
ASSETS
Current assets $ 8,908,047
Restricted assets 26,590,497
Property, plant and equipment, net 280,192,251
Deferred charges 29,942,396
Total assets $ 345,633,191
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current, unrestricted $ 7,135,308
Current, restricted 14,124,518
Long-term liabilities 141,364,773
Total liabilities 162,624,599
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 163,783,005
Restricted for debt service and reserves 18,758,717
Unrestricted 466,870
Total net assets 183,008,592
Total liabilities and net assets $ 345,633,191
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES
Operating revenues $ 20,266,659
Operating expenses (20,145,146)
Depreciation and amortization (4,077,123)
Non-operating revenues 18,391,417
Net income $ 14,435,807

The following financial information concerning transactions with the Authority has been included in the City’s financial
statements under the following captions:

Government-wide Financial Statements Fund Lewel Financial Statements
Statement of Net Assets Statement of Fund Net Assets
Business-type activities Water and sewer
Due from other governments $ 37,797 Due from other governments $ 37,797
Statement of Activities Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Business-type activities Changes in Fund Net Assets -
Water and sewer expenses $ 2,464,840 Proprietary Funds
I Water and sewer
Contractual services $ 2,464,840
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NOTE 11: UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

In lieu of making payments to the Mississippi Department of Employment Security (MDES), the City makes deposits
into a bank account designated for unemployment compensation of an amount equal to 2% of the first $14,000 of
covered employee wages paid in the preceding calendar year. The total funds designated were $54,063 and exceeded the
requirement of $37,606. The amount of contingent liability, if any, the City could be obligated for cannot be determined.

NOTE 12: RETIREMENT PLANS
(A) Public Employees’ Retirement System

The City participates in a retirement system administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement System of Mississippi
(PERS). The system is a defined benefit plan and includes a multi-employer, cost-sharing pension plan as described
below:

Plan Description and Provisions

Substantially all of the City’s full-time employees participate in PERS, a multi-employer, cost-sharing, defined
benefit public employee pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living
adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by State
law and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature. PERS issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That information
may be obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement System, PERS Building, 429 Mississippi Street,
Jackson, MS 39201-10035, or by calling (601) 359-3589 or 1-800-444-PERS.

Description of Funding Policy

PERS members were required to contribute 7.25% of their annual covered salary from October 1, 2009 to June
30, 2010. As of July 1, 2010, this amount increased to 9%. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. This amount was 12% of annual covered payroll from October 1, 2009 to December 31, 2011.
From January 1, 2012 to June 30, 2012, this amount increased to 12.93%. As of July 1, 2012, the rate increased
to 14.26%. The contribution requirements of PERS members are established and may be amended only by the
State of Mississippi Legislature. The City’s contributions to PERS for the years September 30, 2012, 2011, and
2010, were $593,267, $521,515, and $503,713, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.

(B) Deferred Compensation Plan

The City, through PERS, offers its employees a voluntary deferred compensation plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all City employees, permits them to defer a portion of their
salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseeable emergency.

The assets of the plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. The requirements
of Internal Revenue Code Section 457(g) prescribes that the City does not own the amounts deferred by employees,
including the related income on those amounts. Additionally, the City does not have fiduciary accountability for the
plan. Accordingly, the assets and the liability for compensation deferred by plan participants, including earnings on plan
assets, are not included in the City’s financial statements.

NOTE 13: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(A) Litigation
The City is party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in governmental operations. These legal

proceedings are not likely to have a material adverse impact on the affected funds of the City. The amount of contingent
liability, if any, that the City could be obligated for cannot reasonably be determined.
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NOTE 13: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

(B) Grants and Awards

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies,
principally federal and state governments. Any disallowed expenses, including amounts already collected, might
constitute a liability of the applicable funds.

(C) Lease Commitments

Non-cancellable operating leases at September 30, 2012 are as follows:

In December 2010, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located at the City Clerk Office. The lease
agreement is for 36 months with payments of $288.98 per month

In September 2012, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located at the Permits Office. The lease
agreement is for 36 months with payments of $218.00 per month

In October 2010, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located at the City Court Office. The lease
agreement is for 48 months with payments of $127.34 per month.

In October 2010, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located at the City Court Office. The lease
agreement is for 48 months with payments of $127.34 per month.

In April 2011, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located at the Water Billing Department. The lease
agreement is for 36 months with payments of $140.14 per month.

In January 2010, the City entered into a lease agreement for a postal meter located in the mail room of City Hall. The
lease agreement is for 60 months with payments of $375.00 per month.

In March 2012, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located at the Police Department. The lease
agreement is for 36 months with payments of $327.37 per month.

In July 2012, the City entered into a lease agreement for a copier located in the Public Works Office. The lease
agreement is for 36 months with payments of $69.00 per month.

Total lease payments made during the year ended September 30, 2012 totaled $27,558.

The future noncancelable lease obligation of these leases at September 30, 2012 is as follows:

Year Ending
September 30,
2013 $ 20,078
2014 15,918
2015 6,363

$ 42,359
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NOTE 13: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued)
(D) Contract Commitments
Service Contracts

The City contracts with private contractors for various services. The following represents a significant service
commitment as of September 30, 2012:

On November 20, 2009, the City entered into a service contract with Utility Partners, LLC dba UP Group, LLC, to
provide professional utility management, operations, and maintenance services for the City’s Public Works operations,
consisting of the following departments: Utility Billing, Water & Sewer Operations, Street and Drainage, Vehicle
Maintenance, and Parks & Recreation. The terms of the original contract are four years through November 30, 2013,
with the following base fees remaining as of September 30, 2012:

2013 1,761,758
2014 294,989
S 205677

Payment terms are 1/12% of the base fee due by the 15" of each month. Payments under the service contract totaled
$1,771,183 for the year ended September 30, 2012 and are included in water and sewer operating expenses, contractual
services in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net assets proprietary funds.

Qutstanding Construction Commitments

The City had the following outstanding construction commitments with respect to unfinished capital projects as of
September 30, 2012, which will be paid from existing grants:

General government $ 8,236
Culture and recreation 485,499
Public safety 62,039
Public works 91,754
Water and sewer 260,771
Port and harbor 19,802
508191

NOTE 14: RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is covered for significant losses through commercial insurance carriers except for the following noted as (A)
and (B), which are covered through self-insurance risk pools.

(A) Self-Insurance — Workers Compensation Fund

The City is a member in the Mississippi Municipal Workers’ Compensation Group, Inc. This non-profit corporation is a
self-insurance worker’s compensation fund organized under the non-profit laws of the State of Mississippi. The group is
self-insured under statutory workers compensation protection up to $1,000,000. Members are jointly and severally liable
for the obligations of the group. The possibility of additional liability exists, but that amount, if any, cannot be
determined.

(B) Self-Insurance — Liability Fund

The City is a member in the Mississippi Municipal Liability Plan. The Plan is a private non-profit corporation organized
under the laws of the State of Mississippi. The plan provides liability and tort claims insurance for its members
according to limits established by the Mississippi Tort Claims Act. The plan is totally self-insured with claims and
expenses paid out of the premiums and the members are jointly and severally liable for any claims and expenditures
beyond the premium base. The possibility of additional liability exists, but that amount, if any cannot be determined.

36



CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 14: RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(C) Federal Grants

In the normal course of operations and as a result of the destruction from Hurricane Katrina in 2005, Hurricane Gustav in
2008, and Hurricane Isaac in 2012, the City has received grant funds from various Federal agencies. The grant programs
are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose of which is to ensure compliance with conditions
precedent to the granting of funds.

NOTE 15: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The City has evaluated events occurring subsequent to year end through October 14, 2013, which is the date the
statements were available to be issued. The following events were identified:

(A) Construction Contracts

Subsequent to year end, the City entered into approximately $1.8 million in construction and engineering contracts and
change orders related to various construction projects and equipment. These projects are funded by federal grants.

(B) Bond Issuance
Subsequent to year end, there was a resolution declaring the intention of the Mayor and the Board of Alderman to issue

General Obligation bonds in the maximum principal amount of $600,000 to raise money for the purpose of paying the
costs of making capital improvements in the city and paying the costs of such borrowing,.

(C) MEMA Repayment
Subsequent to year end, the city repaid MEMA $330,439 for payments received in prior years for general and proprietary

funds project worksheets obligations that were deobligated or reduced at the project closeout. This amount is included in
the current year as a liability in deferred revenue.
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COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS



CITY OF LONG BEACH
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Special Total Nonmajor
Revenue Debt Service Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,325 $ - 8 1,325
Taxes receivable, net - 2,930 2,930
Other receivables 5 - 5
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 112,790 803,625 916,415
Certificates of deposit 55,274 - 55,274
Total assets $ 169,394 $ 806,555 $ 975,949
Fund balances:
Committed $ 168,064 $ - $ 168,064
Assigned - 806,555 806,555
Unassigned 1,330 - 1,330
Total fund balances 169,394 806,555 975,949
Total fund balances $ 169,394 $ 806,555 $ 975,949

See auditors' report.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Total Nonmajor
Revenue Debt Service Governmental
Funds Funds Funds
REVENUES
Property taxes $ - $ 248,125 $ 248,125
Investment earnings 830 287 1,117
Total revenues 830 248,412 249,242
EXPENDITURES
Debt Service
Principal - 307,689 307,689
Interest and other charges - 94,563 94,563
Total expenditures - 402,252 402,252
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 830 (153,840) (153,010)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 706,618 706,618
Total other financing sources (uses) - 706,618 706,618
Net change in fund balances 830 552,778 553,608
Fund balances - beginning 168,564 253,777 422,341
Fund balances - ending $ 169,394 $ 806,555 $ 975,949

See auditors' report.

39




COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS



CITY OF LONG BEACH

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Certificates of deposit

Total assets

FUND BALANCES
Fund balances:
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total fund balances

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Forestry Contribution
Commission Agreement
Grant Fund Totals

$ 1,325 $ - 1,325
- 5 5
- 112,790 112,790
= 55,274 55,274
$ 1,325 $ 168,069 169,394
$ - $ 168,064 168,064
1,325 5 1,330
1,325 168,069 169,394
$ 1,325 $ 168,069 169,394

See auditors' report.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Forestry Contribution
Commission Agreement
Grant Fund Totals

REVENUES
Investment earnings $ 3 $ 827 $ 830

Total revenues 3 827 830
Net change in fund balances 3 827 830
Fund balances - beginning 1,322 167,242 168,564
Fund balances - ending $ 1,325 $ 168,069 $ 169,394

See auditors' report.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Municipal School Debt

Debt Service Service Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted $ 692,396 $ 111,229 $ 803,625
Taxes receivable, net 2,930 - 2,930
Total assets $ 695,326 $ 111,229 $ 806,555
Fund balances:
Assigned $ 695,326 $ 111,229 $ 806,555
Total fund balances 695,326 111,229 806,555
Total fund balances $ 695,326 $ 111,229 $ 806,555

See auditors' report.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

REVENUES
Property taxes
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other charges

Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

Municipal School Debt
Debt Service Service Total
$ 248,125 $ - $ 248,125
- 287 287
248,125 287 248,412
307,689 - 307,689
94,563 - 94,563
402,252 - 402,252
(154,127) 287 (153,840)
706,618 - 706,618
706,618 - 706,618
552,491 287 552,778
142,835 110,942 253,777
$ 695,326 $ 111,229 $ 806,555

See auditors' report.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH
SCHEDULE OF SURETY BONDS FOR CITY OFFICIALS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Covered Company Amount Expires
Mayor Brierfield Insurance Company $100,000 6/1/2014
Alderpersons Brierfield Insurance Company $100,000 7/6/2014
Police Chief Brierfield Insurance Company $50,000 7/1/2014
Police Brierfield Insurance Company $25,000 7/1/2014
City Clerk Brierfield Insurance Company $50,000 7/1/2014
Comptroller Brierfield Insurance Company $50,000 8/16/2014
Deputy Clerks Brierfield Insurance Company $50,000 8/16/2014

See auditors' report.
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REPORTS ON COMPLIANCE AND INTERNAL CONTROL



ﬁ“ EEFL&

A' L Alexander Van Loon Sloan Levens Favre, PLLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

October 14, 2013

Honorable Mayor and Members of the
Board of Alderpersons

City of Long Beach

Long Beach, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi as of and for the year ended September
30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s basic financial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated October 14, 2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of City of Long Beach, Mississippi is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Long
Beach, Mississippi’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant
deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there
is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described as items 2012-01 through 2012-03 in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses.
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the
Board of Alderpersons

City of Long Beach

Long Beach, Mississippi

Qctober 14, 2013

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi in a separate letter
dated October 14, 2013.

The City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s responses and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Alderpersons and others within the
City of Long Beach, Mississippi, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Moo, Voo, for for - Fe

ALEXANDER,’VAN LOON, SLOAN, LEVENS & FAVRE, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants
Gulfport, Mississippi
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A I‘ Alexander ] Van Loon Sloan Levens : Favre, PLLC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL
EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

October 14, 2013

Honorable Mayor and Members of the
Board of Alderpersons

City of Long Beach

Long Beach, Mississippi

Compliance

We have audited the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the City of
Long Beach, Mississippi’s major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2012. The City of Long Beach,
Mississippi’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s compliance based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion. Qur audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s compliance with
those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Long Beach, Mississippi complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2012.
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the
Board of Alderpersons

City of Long Beach

Long Beach, Mississippi

October 14, 2013

Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs.
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine
the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be significant deficiencies
or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses have been identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in
internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 2012-
04 and 2012-06 to be material weaknesses.

The City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs and the corrective action plan on page 59. We did not audit the City of Long
Beach, Mississippi’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Alderpersons and others within the
City of Long Beach, Mississippi, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

ol Vo fln, o s & Aore

ALEXANDER, VAN LOON, SL6 , LEV’ENS & FAVRE, PLLC
Certified Public Accountants
Gulfport, Mississippi
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

SCHEDULE 1

Grantor Federal Agency Grant No./
Passed - Through Agency CFDA Pass-Through Identifying Federal
Program Title Number Grantor No. No. Expenditures
US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Office of Community Planning and Development
Passed through Mississippi Development Authority
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 14.228 R103-235-01-KCR $ 10,783
14.228 R103-235-01-KP 32,000
14.228 R-109-235-02-KCR 2,522
14.228 R-109-235-03-KCR 162,280
14,228 R-109-235-04-KCR 11,208
Total US Department of Housing and Urban Development 218,793
US DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
Passed through the State of Mississippi
Department of Marine Resources
Boating Infrastructure Grant Program 15.622 Y13D 440,596
Coastal Impact Assistance Program (CIAP) 15.426 MI11AF00106 305,958
Total US Department of the Interior 746,554
US DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Passed through the State of Mississippi
Department of Public Safety
Violence Against Women Grants 16.588 10SL2981 18,427
16.588 09SL2981 6,634
25061
Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 16.592 2010-DJ-BX-2031 4,894
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 N/A 1,828
Total US Department of Justice 31,783
US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
National Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA)
Passed through the State of Mississippi
Department of Public Safety
Occupant Protection Incentive Grant 20.602 110P2031 6,919
Alcohol Open Container Requitements 20.607 10TA2031 40,376
Passed through the State of Mississippi
Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction Grant 20205 STP-9368-00(001) LPA/105864-401000 411000 3,229
20205 STP-9082-00(003)LPA 105719-701000 ARRA 4,220
20.205 STP-0295-00(013) 523,187
20.205 ER-0295-00(011) LPA/105156-711000 86,261
20.205 STP-0295-00(012) LPA/105270-701000 268,930
Total Highway Planning and Construction Grant 885,827
Total US Department of Transportation 933,122

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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SCHEDULE 1 (Continued)
CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Grant No./
Grantor Federal Agency / Passed - Through CFDA Pass-Through Identifying Federal
Agency / Program Title Number Grantor No. No. Expenditures
US DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed through Mississippi Emergency Management Agency
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance/Hurricane Katrina 97.036 1604-DR-MS PW6681 69,200
PW6 8,500
PW4394 40
PW9901 4,986
PW10860 406
PWI11111 29,030
PW11160 56,479
PW4682 162,377
PWI11125 21,940
PW5852 69,184
PW6588 329,197
Total Disaster Grants - Public Assistance/Hurricane Katrina 751,339
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance/Hurricane Isaac 97.036 1604-DR-MS PW53 25,290
PW186 56,291
PW343 1,918
PW406 1,400
PW552 37,939
PW625 169
PW626 328
PW414 4,903
PW416 2,389
PW748 32
Total Disaster Grants - Public Assistance/Hurricane Isaac 130,659
Total Disaster Grants 881,998
Passed through State of Mississippi Emergency Management Agency
Hazard Mitigation Flood Buyout Program 97.029 FMA-PJ-04-MS-2009-005 430,593
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 97.039 DR-1604-MS-007 74,471
Total Hazard Mitigation Grants 505,064
Total US Department of Homeland Security 1,387,062
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 3,317,314

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
50



CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

NOTE 1- BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is included in the federal grant activity of the City of Long
Beach, Mississippi and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in
accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations.

NOTE 2- RECONCILIATION TO GRANT REVENUE

The following reconciles the total expenditures of federal awards to grant revenue recognized in the statement of
activities for the year ended September 30, 2012:

Total expenditures of federal awards $ 3,317,314
Deobligation of federal expenditures on
PW 2907 (21,716)
PW 3372 (14,613)
PW 7291 (1,477)
PW 7776 (18,284)
PW 2235 (158,561)
PW 3444 (54,400)
Total Deobligated (269,051)
Total federal revenues $ 3,048,263
Operating grants and contributions $ 921,272
Capital grants and contributions 3,738,330
Less: capital contributions donated by developers (1,330,000)
Less: state grants (281,339)
Total federal revenues $ 3,048,263

Federal grant revenues are included in program revenue (operating and capital grants and contributions) in the statement
of activities for the year ended September 30, 2012.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Section I — Summary of Auditors’ Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued
Internal Control over financial reporting:
Material Weaknesses identified?
Significant Deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses?
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
Internal Control Over Major Programs:
Material Weaknesses identified?
Significant Deficiencies identified that are

not considered to be material weaknesses?

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major
programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section_510(a) of Circular A-133?

Programs tested as major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program
15.426 Coastal Impact Assistance Program
15.622 Boating Infrastructure Grant Program
20.205 Highway Planning and Construction
97.029 Hazard Mitigation Flood Buyout Program
97.036 Disaster Public Assistance Grant

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and B
Programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
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Ungqualified

Yes
None Reported

No

Yes

None Reported

Ungqualified

Yes

$300,000
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Section II — Financial Statement Findings

2012-01 Finding

Condition

Currently, grant monitoring is performed by each department head. In addition, the City has contracts with numerous
companies to administer most of its grants. As a result, the person with financial reporting responsibilities was unable to
provide supporting grant expenditures documentation in a timely manner. These delays in obtaining the supporting
documentation requested resulted in delays in issuing our auditors’ reports.

Criteria

Guidelines for nonfederal entities expending federal assistance include establishing internal controls that ensure the
retention of grant records, all documents that support the activity and/or expenditures of the recipient or sub-recipient
under the award, for a period of three years from the submission of the final expenditure report. In addition, OMB
Circular A-133 (Revised, June 27, 2003), Audit of States, Local Governments, and Nonpraofit Organizations, provisions
require establishing the same internal controls over reporting and monitoring for Federal single audit and program-
specific audits. Although the City has contracted companies to administer many of its federal grants, this does not relieve
the City of its reporting and monitoring responsibilities under the award.

Effect

Improper grant reporting and monitoring could jeopardize grant funding due to findings and/or questioned costs during the
performance of future single audits.

Recommendation

We recommend that the City designate a person with financial reporting responsibilities (e.g., Comptroller) to monitor all
grant awards. This person should assume the responsibility of overseeing all grant processes from the application
submission through the three year records retention period. In addition, these responsibilities should include maintaining
grant files that include all supporting grant award and expenditures documentation that would be readily available when
requested. In addition, to reduce the possibility of jeopardizing grant funding due to findings and/or questioned costs
during the performance of future single audits, internal controls should be established that ensure federal guidelines and
requirements are met.

Management’s Response

The City agrees and the Comptroller is working on gathering all this data so that it is maintained in one place.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Section II — Financial Statement Findings (Continued)
2012-02 Finding

Condition

Persons who receive and post payments in the court department, also handle customer complaints, authorize adjustments,
and post adjustments to customer accounts.

Criteria

Internal controls are designed to safeguard assets and help prevent or detect losses from employee error or dishonesty. A
fundamental concept in a good system of internal control is the segregation of duties. Proper internal controls over cash
processes require segregation of duties.

Effect

Lack of segregation of duties could result in misappropriation of assets that would not be prevented or detected in a timely
manner.

Recommendation
We recommend that the following practices be implemented to improve existing internal controls:
e Customer complaint resolution and adjustment authorization should be performed by someone other than
persons receiving and posting payments.
e  Sequential numbered receipts should be included with validated deposit slip and court cash receipts reports used
to post receipts. In addition, person receiving validated deposit slip and court cash receipts reports should
review numbered receipts for missing numbers.

Management’s Response

Currently, all customer complaints and adjustments are done by the Court Clerk, who does not handle posting of fines.
The City will begin including and reviewing sequential number receipts with the daily deposits.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Section IT — Financial Statement Findings (Continued)

2012-03 Finding

Condition

Utility Partners, LLC (UP), a third party, and a City employee perform the City’s water and sewer and port and harbor
billings and collections services using the City’s facilities and software. Such outsourcing of services to a third party
does not relieve the City of its responsibility for accountability and the adequacy of internal controls. Per our review of
UP’s internal control over such services, we determined that there is a lack of segregation of duties over such services.
All employees are responsible for opening customer mail, recording payments in the billing system, preparing the
deposit, and making the deposit at the bank. Water and sewer customer complaints and account adjustments are also
resolved by these employees.

Criteria

Internal controls are designed to safeguard assets and help prevent or detect losses from employee error or dishonesty. A
fundamental concept in a good system of internal control is the segregation of duties. Proper internal controls over cash
processes require segregation of duties.

Effect

Lack of segregation of duties could result in misappropriation of assets that would not be prevented or detected in a timely
manner.

Recommendation

We recommend that the City institute procedures to compensate for the lack of segregation of duties or discuss
segregating duties with UP. Such procedures could include the following:

e Perform a proof of accounts receivable monthly. Any significant or unusual noncash write offs should be
investigated.
Review and reconcile the accounts receivable aging/sub-ledger monthly.

e  Present list of adjustments that includes customer name, amount, date, and reason, to the Board of Alderpersons,
monthly. The Board’s review and approval should be notated in the official Board minutes.

Management’s Response

The Comptroller will perform a proof of accounts receivable monthly, reconcile accounts receivable monthly, and review
all adjustments monthly.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Section ITI — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
2012-04 Finding
Programs: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development; Community Development Block Grant; CFDA
#14.228; R-103-235-01-KCR, R-109-235-02-KCR, R-109-235-03- KCR, R-109-235-04-KCR
U.S. Department of Interior; Boating Infrastructure Grant Program; CFDA # 15.622; Y13D
U.S. Department of Interior; Coastal Impact Assistance Program; CFDA # 15.426; M1 1AF00106
U.S. Department of Transportation; Highway Planning and Construction Grant; CFDA # 20.205; STP-9368-
00(001) LPA/105864-401000 411000, STP-9082-00(003)LPA 105719-701000 ARRA, STP-0295-00(013),
ER-0295-00(011)LPA/105156-71100, STP-0295-00(012)LPA/105270-701000
U.S. Department of Homeland Security; Hazard Mitigation Flood Buyout Program; CFDA #97.029; FMA-PJ-
04-MS-2009-005

U.S. Department of Homeland Security; CFDA #97.036; Disaster Public Assistance Grant
U.S. Department of Homeland Security; Hazard Mitigation Grant Program; CFDA #97.039; DR-1604-MS-007

Condition

Capital asset listings maintained by the departments do not identify assets acquired with federal funds to ensure proper
stewardship and disposal of assets purchased with federal funding.

Criteria or Specific Requirement

A-102 Common Rule requires that the grantee not dispose of or encumber the title to real property without the prior
consent of the awarding agency.

Effect

Assets acquired with federal funds could be misappropriated or improperly disposed of.
Questioned Costs

There are no questioned costs associated with the finding,

Context

Assets purchased and constructed with these grants include large immovable generators and building upgrades/retrofits.
Accordingly, these assets are less likely to be misappropriated or improperly disposed of.

Cause

The City does not maintain a global capital asset listing that identifies capital assets constructed or purchased with federal
funds.

Recommendation

We recommend that the City take steps to create and maintain a capital assets listing that will allow for identifying assets
constructed or purchased with federal awards. Such listings should be updated annually after performing an inventory of
assets as required by State law.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

The City concurs with the finding and has provided a response in the Corrective Action Plan.

56



CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
2012-05 Finding
Program: U.S. Department of Transportation; Highway Planning and Construction Grant; CFDA # 20.205; STP-9368-

00(001) LPA/105864-401000 411000, STP-9082-00(003)LPA 105719-701000 ARRA, STP-0295-00(013),

ER-0295-00(011)LPA/105156-71100, STP-0295-00(012)L.PA/105270-701000
Condition
Certified payrolls were not submitted weekly by the construction contractor.

Criteria or Specific Requirement

Department of Labor (DOL) regulations 29 CFR Sections 5.5 and 5.6 require that the contractor and subcontractor
submit certified payrolls to the subgrantee weekly.

Effect

The contractor or subcontractor could have paid workers less than the required minimum wage rate.
Questioned Costs

There are no questioned costs associated with the finding.

Context

Of the four contractors’ certified payrolls selected for review, only one contractor was missing certified payroll weekly
reports.

Cause

One contractor did not submit certified payrolls for eight weeks to the grant administrator. The grant administrator did
not require the contractor to submit certified payrolls for weeks during which no work was performed.

Recommendation

We recommend that the grant administrator responsible for obtaining the certified payrolls be reminded of the
requirement to obtain certified payrolls on a weekly basis and that the City establish procedures (e.g., a contract bid and
award checklist) to ensure that the grant administrator adheres to all grant requirements. The grant administrator should
also take steps to obtain missing payrolls in a timely manner and consideration should to given to withholding payment to
contractors who do not comply with requirements.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

The City concurs with the finding and has provided a response in the Corrective Action Plan.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs (Continued)
2012-06 Finding
Program: U.S. Department of Interior; Boating Infrastructure Grant Program; CFDA # 15.622; Y13D
U.S. Department of Interior; Coastal Impact Assistance Program; CFDA # 15.426; M11AF00106
U.S. Department of Transportation, Highway Planning and Construction Grant; CFDA # 20.205; STP-9368-
00(001) LPA/105864-401000 411000, STP-9082-00(003)LPA 105719-701000 ARRA, STP-0295-00(013),
ER-0295-00(011)LPA/105156-71100, STP-0295-00(012)LPA/105270-701000
U.S. Department of Homeland Security; Hazard Mitigation Flood Buyout Program; CFDA #97.029; FMA-
PJ-04-MS-2009-005
U.S. Department of Homeland Security; CFDA #97.036; Disaster Public Assistance Grant
Condition
Audit reports were not prepared and filed timely with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC).

Criteria or Specific Requirement

OMB Circular A-133 requires the audit reports to be filed with the FAC within nine months after the end of the audit
period.

Effect

The City risks losing current federal award funding and preventing eligibility for future awards.

Questioned Costs

There are no questioned costs associated with the finding.

Context

The City does not maintain records that are readily auditable and it takes a considerable amount of time for preparation
by the City for the audit. The City has hired a Comptroller and is working towards catching up on the audits and having
them prepared and submitted timely.

Cause

The City did not submit the audit reports to the FAC within nine months.

Recommendation

We recommend the City to continue to work towards maintaining proper records, implementing audit recommendations,
and scheduling and managing an audit in order to promote timely audit preparation and filings.

Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions

The City concurs with the finding and has provided a response in the Corrective Action Plan.
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CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
SINGLE AUDIT FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

2012-04 Finding

Capital asset listings maintained by the departments do not identify assets acquired with federal funds to ensure
proper stewardship and disposal of assets purchased with federal funding.

Management Comments and Corrective Action Plan

The Administration agrees that the lists of assets maintained by the departments do not identify assets acquired with
Federal Funds. The Comptroller has established a master schedule of all City assets and it includes a column to
notate one purchased with Federal Funds.

2012-05 Finding

Certified payrolls were not submitted weekly by the construction contractor and subcontractor.

Management Comments and Corrective Action Plan

The Administration understands that there were some missing certified payrolls. The ones that were missing were
for weeks when no work was performed. We are now aware that certified payrolls must be complete for all weeks,
even when no work is completed. We have already discussed this with the City Engineer to assure that they will be
completed in the future.

2012-06 Finding
Audit reports were not prepared and filed timely with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC).

Management Comments and Corrective Action Plan

The City understands that they did not meet the requirement of submitting the audit to the FAC within nine months
of year end close. The Comptroller has already worked out a schedule with auditors to make sure this is not the case
for FY 2013.
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(Unaudited)

2011-04 U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development; Community Development Block Grant Disaster
Recovery; CFDA #14.228; R-103-235-01-KCR, R-109-235-02-KCR, R-109-235-03- KCR, R-109-235-04-

KCR

U.S. Department of Commerce; Public Works Grant; CFDA # 11.300; 47905870

U. S. Department of Homeland Security; Hazard Mitigation Grant Program; CFDA #97.039; DR 1459-005

MS; DR-1604-MS-007; DR-1604-MS-88
U.S. Department of Homeland Security; CFDA #97.036; Disaster Public Assistance Grant

Condition: Capital asset listings maintained by the departments do not identify assets acquired with federal

funds to ensure proper stewardship and disposal of assets purchased with federal funding,

Recommendation: We recommend that the City take steps to record all capital assets in a proper software
system that will allow for identifying assets constructed or purchased with federal awards. Such listings should
be updated annually after conducting an inventory of assets as required by State law.

Current Status:

The Comptroller now keeps a master spreadsheet with the entire City inventory. The spreadsheet includes a
column to notate whether the invoice was purchased with Federal Funds.
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CITY OF LONG BEACH, MISSISSIPPI
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS, Continued
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012
(Unaudited)

2011-05 U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development;, Community Development Block Grant Disaster
Recovery; CFDA #14.228; R-103-235-01-KCR
U.S. Department of Commerce; Public Works Grant; CFDA # 11.300; 47905870

Condition: Certified payrolls were not submitted weekly by the construction contractor and subcontractor.

Recommendation: We recommend that the grant administrator responsible for obtaining the certified payrolls
be reminded of the requirement to obtain certified payrolls on a weekly basis and that the City establish
procedures (e.g., a contract bid and award checklist) to ensure that the grant administrator adheres to all grant
requirements. The grant administrator should also take steps to obtain missing payrolls in a timely manner and
consideration should to given to withholding payment to contractors who do not comply with requirements.

Current Status:
The certified payrolls that were missing were for weeks when no work was completed. The City Engineer was
not aware that the certified payrolls were required on weeks with no work. It had never been questioned by the

granting agency in the past. The Comptroller has discussed this with our City Engineer and has been assured
that certified payrolls will be completed even when no work has been done.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH MISSISSIPPI STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

October 14, 2013

Honorable Mayor and Members of the
Board of Alderpersons

City of Long Beach

Long Beach, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi as of and for the year ended September
30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated October 14, 2013. We have conducted our audit in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards.

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State Auditor, we have also
performed procedures to test compliance with certain state laws and regulations. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with state laws and regulations was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion.

The results of those procedures and our audit of the basic financial statements disclosed the following material instances
of noncompliance with state laws and regulations. Qur findings and recommendations and your responses are as
follows:

Finding:

Section 21-35-31 (1) of the Mississippi Code requires that the governing authority of every municipality in the
state shall have the municipal books audited annually, before the close of the next succeeding fiscal year, in
accordance with procedures and requirements prescribed by the State Auditor. The City did not meet the
requirements of having the municipal books audited before the close of the next succeeding fiscal year. We
recommend that the City implement procedures to ensure that its financial statements audit is performed in
accordance with state law.

Views of Responsible Officials & Planned Corrective Actions:

The City understands that they did not meet the requirement of having the municipal books audited before the
close of the following fiscal year. The Comptroller has already worked out a schedule with auditors to make
sure this is not the case for FY 2013.

This report is intended for the information of the City’s management and the Office of the State Auditor and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, this report is a matter of
public record and its distribution is not limited.

Gyl /é»n ,Z;A ‘O%z,, A Ao
ER,’ VAN LOON, SLOAN, LE S & FAVRE, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants
Gulfport, Mississippi

9490 Three Rivers Road | Gulfport, MS 39503 } (228) 863-0411 i‘ Fax (228) 863-1165 , E-Mail: info@avlcpa.com I wwwr.avlcpa.com
304 N. Vardaman Street | P.O. Box 749 i Wiggins, MS 39577 ] (601) 928-4416 Fax (601) 928-4417 { E-Mail: info@avlcpa.com | www.avlcpa.com
' EIN - 64 - 8854714
Members: American Institute of CPA’s, Mississippi Society of CPA’s, The AICPA Alliance for CPA Firms-
Partnering for CPA Practice Success, National Association of Certified Valuation Analysts



ADDITIONAL INTERNAL CONTROL
AND OTHER MATTERS
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Alexander Van Loon Sloan ; Levens Favre, PLLC

ADDITIONAL INTERNAL CONTROL AND OTHER MATTERS

October 14, 2013

Honorable Mayor and Members of the
Board of Alderpersons

City of Long Beach

Long Beach, Mississippi

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Long Beach, Mississippi as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2012 and have issued our report thereon dated October 14, 2013. In planning and performing
our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Long Beach, Mississippi’s internal controls to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements and
not to provide assurance on the internal controls.

However, during our audit we noted certain matters that are opportunities for strengthening internal controls.
The pages that accompany this letter summarize our comments and suggestions regarding those matters. This
letter does not affect our report dated October 14, 2013, on the financial statements of the City of Long
Beach, Mississippi.

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We will be pleased to
discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to
assist you in implementing the recommendations.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Alderpersons, and
others within the City of Long Beach, Mississippi and should not be used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

/ / . —
M b KL M b e
ALEXANDER, VAN LOON, LOAN;LEVENS & FAVRE, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants
Gulfport, Mississippi

9490 Three Rivers Road | Gulfport, MS 39503 | (228) 863-0411 |§%x (228) 863-1165 ] E-Mail: info@avlcpa.com I www.avicpa.com
304 N. Vardaman Street | P.O. Box 749 5 Wiggins, MS 39577 u (601) 928-4416 i Fax (601) 928-4417 ] E-Mail: info@avlcpa.com | www.avlcpa.com

Members: American Institute of CPA's, Mississippi Society of CPA’s, The AICPA Alliance for CPA Firms-
Partnering for CPA Practice Success, National Association of Certified Valuation Analysts



Honorable Mayor and Members of the
Board of Alderpersons

City of Long Beach

October 14, 2013

Fixed Assets Inventory

As noted in the prior year, Section 7-7-211 of the Mississippi Code Annotated (1972) requires each
municipality to conduct an annual fixed assets inventory as prescribed in the Mississippi Municipality
Fixed Assets Management Manual. Per the manual, the municipality should designate a person to
maintain its master fixed assets records. This person should periodically, but no less than annually,
reconcile the master fixed assets records with the physical assets. The master fixed assets records should
be a complete record of each item with a cost of at least $1,000. However, per the manual certain
equipment must be included regardless of the cost.

At September 30, 2012, the City did not maintain master fixed assets records. Each department is
responsible for maintaining its fixed assets inventory listing. We recommend that the City’s Comptroller
be designated as the person to maintain its master fixed assets records. The Comptroller with the
assistance of department personnel should conduct a complete inventory of fixed assets, by department.
These fixed assets inventory listings should be used to prepare the master fixed assets records. Once
established, the master inventory listing should be updated for additions and/or disposals as they occur.
The Comptroller should reconcile annual fixed assets inventories conducted by departments to the master
fixed assets listing. We also recommend that the Comptroller review the Mississippi Municipality Fixed
Assets Management Manual to ensure that the City complies with all regulations. Currently, the City is in
the process of implementing these recommendations.

Budgetary Reporting

As noted in the prior year, when a government has a legally adopted budget for its general fund or its
major special revenue funds, GASB No. 34 requires presentation of budgetary comparison schedules for
those funds. The purpose of the budgetary comparison information is to demonstrate the government’s
compliance in obtaining and using financial resources in accordance with its legally adopted budget.
During our audit procedures, adjustments were proposed and recorded to general fund accounts.
Therefore, it appears that budget to actual information presented to the Board during the year may have
been incomplete. In addition, budgetary comparison schedules were not included as part of the required
supplemental information to the City’s financial statements. We recommend that the Comptroller
implement procedures to ensure that all inflows and outflows and budget amendments are properly
recorded, by department, in the City’s general ledger. We also recommend that monthly budget to actual
reconciliations to general fund accounts be performed to ensure proper budget amendments are approved
before year-end closing.
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the
Board of Alderpersons

City of Long Beach

October 14, 2013

Undisclosed Cash Accounts

Through our bank account confirmation procedures, we became aware of several cash bank accounts that
were being maintained by several City departments that were not recorded in the City’s general ledger,
despite being City funds. Cash transactions were being processed through these accounts by department
officials effectively eliminating any of the City’s controls or safeguards for maintaining proper control
over cash and purchasing activities. Once discovered, these bank accounts were closed and the funds were
recorded in the City’s general ledger. The following is a list of these bank accounts and their balances at
September 30, 2012:

Long Beach MS Police Relief Fund $ 20,160
Long Beach Police Department Santa 5,422
Long Beach Police Narcotics Seizure Fund 3,019
Long Beach Police Reserve 2,274
Long Beach Police Department Petty Cash 975
Long Beach Police Explorer Post 266 39
Long Beach Firemans Fund 868

Total $ 32,757

We recommend that management stress to employees the need for controls over cash and purchasing
activities to ensure cash receipts are adequately safeguarded against loss and properly recorded in the
financial statements. In addition, we recommend that the City develop an operations manual that
establishes policies and procedures for all its functions. The manual should also include the consequences
of not following these established procedures.
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